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1 DISCLAIMER 

This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a 
general idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in 
this document is based on data/information gathered from various reliable sources; 
however, it is based upon certain assumptions, which may differ from case to case. 
The information has been provided on as is where is basis without any warranties 
or assertions as to the correctness or soundness thereof. Although, due care and 
diligence has been taken to compile this document, the contained information may 
vary due to any change in any of the concerned factors, and the actual results may 
differ substantially from the presented information. SMEDA, its employees or agents 
do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss resulting from this 
memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The contained 
information does not preclude any further professional advice. The prospective user 
of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional diligence and gather any 
information which is necessary for making an informed decision, including taking 
professional advice from a qualified consultant/technical expert before taking any 
decision to act upon the information. 

For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website: 
www.smeda.org.pk 
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The project involves setting up a Snack (Nimko) Manufacturing unit in any big city 
of Pakistan. The unit will produce premium quality Snack (Nimko) with proper 
packaging to be sold in the local market, competing with a few existing brands. 
The unit will be using modern automated machinery for all the processes, ensuring 
quality check throughout the production process. After processing, the finished 
Snacks (Nimko) are packed in 1 kg packets.  

The opportunity of the snack food business was almost unknown to the investors 
of Pakistan up to the mid-eighties and since then there has been moderate 
investment in Snack Manufacturing, Mainly multinational companies producing corn 
and potato based snacks. Potato chips have taken up a major share in the snack 
sector but there is a fairly big demand for traditional local snacks (Nimko).These 
Chick peas flour snacks have been in demand since long as a quick snack. Over 
the past few years the demand for snacks in general has been on the rise, causing 
a gap between demand and supply. Which is why a few brands taking up the Nimko 
business have earned great profits even now exporting these snacks as the 
traditional snacks have a huge market in south Asian market like India, Nepal and 
Bangladesh as well as some European countries with large south Asian population. 
This gap opens up an opportunity to set up units to produce good quality snacks at 
optimum production level. Most of the snack (Nimko) manufacturing units are set-
up in Lahore and Karachi and a few in Quetta, Peshawar and Rawalpindi. 

These snacks (Nimko) are mostly sold under a brand name but not packaged to be 
placed in shelves as rather are sold to wholesalers and then retailers in plastic 
shoppers with no proper packaging but a few names like gourmet ,Rehmat-e-
shereen, Shahi and Nimko to make a few have properly packaged Snack (Nimko 
products). 

The total project cost for setting up this plant is estimated at Rs. 63.537 million. 
The project is financed through 50% debt and 50% equity. The project NPV is 
around Rs. 211.063 million, with an IRR of 45% and payback period of 4.18 years. 
The legal business status of this project is proposed as ‘Sole Proprietorship’. The 
overall proposed production capacity of the plant is 150 kg potato chips per hour. 
The plant will work in two shifts and operate at 50% capacity in the first year. The 
maximum capacity attained is 95% and the plant operates at this capacity sixth 
year onwards. 

Snack Manufacturing Unit is proposed to be located at any big city of Pakistan preferably 
near food processing industrial area. The processing unit will produce different kinds of 
lentil and chick pea flour based snacks. 
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With Installed capacity of 288,000 kg per year and initial utilization of 75%. 
Total Cost Estimates is Rs.19.70 Million with fixed investment Rs 7.028 Million 
 and working capital Rs.12.673 Million 

Given the cost assumptions IRR and payback are 73% and 1.80 years 
respectively. 

The most critical considerations or factors for success of the project are Quality, 
the taste and freshness of the Snacks (Nimko) for prolonged time as customers 
prefer tasty and good quality snack within reasonable pricing. Continuous 
availability of raw material, i.e. Fresh chick pea Flour (Besan) and other raw 
materials are important to ensure the taste ad quality. Waste Production should be 
kept at minimum and production process need to be monitored very carefully. Fully 
automated plant, hence less labour involved and availability of low cost labour as 
well as Product affordable to all income groups are important critical factors to be 
considered. 

It is recommended to estimate the Chick pea (Besan) Flour requirements for the 
year and this should be contracted for in advance with the suppliers so as to secure 
from the drastic changes in the prices. Quality maintenance will play an important 
role as it is evident from the behavior of the general consumers that they are more 
specific towards health issues than ever before. 
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3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA 

The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was 
established in October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the 
economy through development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  

With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the 
national income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the 
number, scale and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral 
research’ to identify policy, access to finance, business development services, 
strategic initiatives and institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.  

Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment 
has been a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.  

Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business development 
services is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services include 
identification of experts and consultants and delivery of need based capacity 
building programs of different types in addition to business guidance through help 
desk services. 

 

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 

The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential 
entrepreneurs in project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility may 
form the basis of an important investment decision and in order to serve this 
objective, the document/study covers various aspects of project concept 
development, start-up, and production, marketing, finance and business 
management.   

The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors in Snack (Nimko) 
Manufacturing Unit by providing them with a general understanding of the 
business with the intention of supporting potential investors in crucial investment 
decisions. 

The need to come up with pre-feasibility reports for undocumented or minimally 
documented sectors attains greater imminence as the research that precedes such 
reports reveal certain thumb rules; best practices developed by existing enterprises 
by trial and error, and certain industrial norms that become a guiding source 
regarding various aspects of business set-up and it’s successful management. 

Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical aspects 
provided later on, which form basis of any Investment Decision. 
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5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT 

The emergence of the middle class, a rapidly growing population, rising number of 
working women, increased urbanization, and awareness about the significance of 
nutritious and hygienic food, has drastically changed the business landscape for the 
processed food industry. As convenience has an immense impact on the food 
choices of consumers, the demand for food products that reduce both the 
preparation time and effort has been growing strongly. 
 
The processed food industry in Pakistan has been going through a major change in 
recent years. The production landscape is transforming from a focus on traditional 
processed food items (e.g., cereal, biscuits, jam, pickles, juices, spices, etc.) to 
higher value added products, such as frozen ready-to-cook/fully cooked food, 
healthier snacks, dressing and sauces, processed meat and poultry. Thus, a large 
number of firms of varying size have come up in recent years, catering to the rapidly 
changing needs of highly diversified consumers in terms of age, gender, taste, 
income, and social background.  
 
Some of the international potato chip companies keeping in view the piquant tastes 
of the national introduced traditional flavored potato chips. With the growth in the 
food segment in Pakistan, a major share is of traditional Sweets and snacks 
(nimko).Due to piquant taste of the people as well as authentic spicy flavors of the 
traditional snacks (Nimko), there is a high demand for the traditional snacks in 
Pakistan. These snacks mostly are sold in the market unpackaged and due to more 
awareness in the masses about food hygiene; packaged snacks are in high 
demand.  

5.1 Product Description:  

The unit will produce Chick pea flour based fried traditional snacks through 
automated machinery line to ensure high quality hygienic product with less help 
from labour. The products produces through the automated machinery line are: 

1. Dal Moth (Fried and Seasoned whole Masoor dal (not peeled)). 

2. Mix Dal (fried and seasoned and coloured chick peas with a mixture of 
thick sev, roasted peanuts and fine sev). 

3. Dal Chana (Fried and Seasoned split chick peas). 

4. Dal mong (Fried and Seasoned whole mong dal). 

5. Sev Fine (Fine Vermicelli/ crunchy noodles made from chickpea flour 
paste, fried and seasoned). 

6. Sev Thick Fine Vermicelli/ crunchy noodles made from chickpea flour 
paste, fried and seasoned) 

7. Kabuli Chana (Fried and Seasoned whole chana dal) 
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8. Gathiya : A thick stand of Chick pea flour that is deep fried and seasoned. 

9. Fried Peanuts: Crunchy fried peanuts coated with chick pea flour and 
seasoning. 

This unit will make premium quality snacks in one standard packet size of 200 
grams. 

Technology: This proposed unit will manufacture snacks with modern processing 
machines including dough maker, cutter, batch fryers, oil extractor and packing 
machine. 

Location: The said project can be set up in any big city of Pakistan preferably near 
food processing industrial area. It is recommended to establish the unit in an area 
where raw material is easily available. It may be area of any big city like Quetta, 
Lahore, and Karachi. The recommended location for this proposed project is 
Satellite town, Quetta.  

Target Market: In addition to local markets in Quetta, interior Balochistan, Karachi, 
Lahore and Islamabad an enormous export market for the Pakistani traditional 
snacks exists in South Asia, Europe, USA, Middle East, etc. 

Employment Generation:  The proposed project will provide direct employment to 
28 people and 20 skilled and unskilled people as labour. 

5.2 Production Process Flow  

Manufacturing Process of Snacks is given below in detail: 
 

Figure 1: Manufacturing Process Flow 
 

 
 
 
 

     Inspection 
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Washing 

Cutting 

Oil Extraction 

Frying Seasoning 

Packaging 



Pre-Feasibility Study                                                                                         (Snack Manufacturing Unit) 
 

                      March 2019     

9 

 
I. Inspection: 

First of all the unit receives raw material from the wholesaler and is then 
checked by quality officer. In case of any any problem in the material, it gets 
rejected and sent back to supplier. 

II. Storage:  
After getting checked for the quality, the raw material then gets sent to the 
store room for storage. 

III. Cleaning: 
The Raw materials like Chick peas, Moong Dal, Masoor Dal, are washed            
and cleaned for frying and seasoning later. 

IV. Dough Making Process: 
The first step in the production process and where chick pea flour is first 
sifted, seasoned and then (Besan) is knead with water for making dough. 

V. Cutting process: 
The dough made in the dough making process is now cut into different types 
of noodles/Vermicelli through a cutter. 

VI. Frying Process: 
In this step all noodles/vermicelli to make sev thick and fine are fried. The 
lentils cleaned and washed are also fried to be packaged separately as well 
as to be used to make a snack mixture comprising of dough and lentil based 
snack. 

VII. Oil Extractor: 
All fried snacks are now sent to the dryer/oil extractor to extract excess oil 
out of them. 

VIII. Semi Automation Seasoning Process: 
In this step, all snacks are seasoned manually in large skillets in to as many 
as seasoning like sweet, spice, salty etc. 

IX. Automatic Pouch Packing: 
In this step all product are packed in proper plastic packs with an  
automation packing machine according to grams. All products have one 
standard size packaging of 200 Grams. 

X. Box Packing: 
Box packing is last step of process. In this process all pouch packaged 
products are packed in the big cartoons manually according to box size and 
sent to retailers. 

5.3 Installed and Operational Capacities 

The Unit will have a installed capacity of 106Kg/hour (381600 kg/year) but at 75% 
capacity utilization   producing 80Kg/hr ,288,000 Kg per year are produced. The 
unit will operate with a total of 7 machines i.e. two Dough Kneaders, 2 cutters, 
Fryer and a dryer unit and a packaging machine. Capacity Growth is assumed to 
be 5%. 
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6 CRITICAL FACTORS 

Waste Production should be kept at minimum and production process need to be 
monitored very carefully. Snacks must be fried in the finest vegetable oil and 
seasoned with delicious flavours. A variety of flavors should be introduced. Advance 
sale orders can ensure the success of the business. 
It is recommended to estimate the raw material requirements for the year and this 
should be contracted for in advance with the suppliers so as to secure from the 
drastic changes in the prices of Potatoes. Quality maintenance will play an important 
role as it is evident from the behavior of the general consumers that they are more 
specific towards health issues than ever before. 
 
7 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT 

The said project can be set up in any big city of Pakistan preferably near food 
processing industrial area. It is recommended to establish the unit in an area where 
raw material is easily available. It may be area of any big city like Quetta, Lahore, 
and Karachi. The recommended location for this proposed project is Satellite town, 
Quetta.  
 
8 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS 

In addition to local markets in Quetta, interior Balochistan, Karachi, Lahore and 
Islamabad an enormous export market for the Pakistani traditional snacks exists in 
South Asia, Europe, USA, Middle East, etc. 

 
9 PROJECT COST SUMMARY 

9.1 Project Economics 

All the figures in this financial model have been calculated for estimated sales of Rs. 
159 million in the year one. The capacity utilization during year one is worked out at 
75 % with 5% increase in subsequent years up to the maximum capacity utilization 
of 90%. 
The following table shows internal rate of return, payback period and net present 
value of the proposed venture. 

Table 1: Project Economics 

Description Details 

 Internal Rate of Return (IRR)  73% 

 Payback Period (yrs.)  1.80 

Net Present Value (Rs.)       76,709,752  
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9.2 Project Financing 

 
Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to bank 
loan; 

Table 2: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (50%) Rs 9.850 Million  
  

Bank Loan (50%) Rs.9.850 Million  
 

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum) 16% 

Tenure of the Loan (Years) 5 

 

9.3 Project Cost 

Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for operations 
of the proposed business.  
 

Table 3: Project Cost 

Description Amount Rs. 

Capital Cost 

Plant and Machinery  1,546,506 

Furniture & Fixture  826,100 

Office Equipment 83,000 

Motor Vehicles 728,800 

Pre-operating Cost 3,700,000 

Total Capital Cost 7,028,408 

Working Capital 

Raw Material Inventory 2,704,896 

Up-front Building Rent 90,000 

Cash 6,479,031 
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Total Working Capital 9,273,927 

Total Project Cost 19,701,472 
 

9.4 Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Plant, machinery and equipment for the proposed project are stated below 
Table 4: Machinery & Equipment 

Description No. Cost  Total Cost 

Dough Kneader                                           
2  

                   
150,000  

                   
300,000  

 Dal Washer                                            
1  

                   
100,000  

                   
100,000  

 Cutter/Sev Maker                                           
2  

                   
150,000  

                   
300,000  

 Batch Fryer with dryer                                            
1  

                   
350,000  

                   
350,000  

 Packing Machine                                           
1  

                   
160,000  

                   
160,000  

 Water Tanker                                           
1  

                   
100,000  

                   
100,000  

 Water Steel Buckets                                           
2  

                       
2,000  

                       
4,000  

 Steel Strainers                                            
4  

                       
1,200  

                       
4,800  

 Large Spoons                                           
6  

                          
500  

                       
3,000  

 Total                                           
7  

                  
1,321,800  

 GST 17%    17%             
224,706  

Total Machinery Cost 
  

1,546,506 
 
 

9.5 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below;  
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Table 5: Furniture & Fixture 

Description No. Cost (Rs.) Total Cost(Rs) 

Office Tables 2.5x4                                           
2  

                     
16,000  

                     
32,000  

 Office Chairs                                           
2  

                       
5,000  

                     
10,000  

 Visitors Chairs                                           
2  

                       
3,500  

                       
7,000  

 Work Shop Chairs                                         
10  

                       
2,500  

                     
25,000  

 Air conditioners (1.5 ton Split) 
for Workshop  

                                         
2  

                     
60,000  

                   
120,000  

 Energy Savers                                         
12  

                          
200  

                       
2,400  

 Fans                                           
2  

                       
3,000  

                       
6,000  

 Total Furniture & Fixtures                       
826,100  

 

9.6 Office Equipment Requirement 

Following office equipment will be required for Snack Manufturing Unit. 
 

Table 6: Office Equipment 

Description No  Cost (Rs) Total Cost (Rs.) 

Laptop (Used/New)                                           
1  

                     
60,000  

                     
60,000  

 Computer printer (s)                                           
1  

                     
15,000  

                     
15,000  

 Telephone Sets                                           
4  

                       
2,000  

                       
8,000  

 Total Office Equipment                           
83,000  
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9.7 Human Resource Requirement 

In order to run operations of Snack Manufacturing Unit smoothly, details of human 
resources required along with number of employees and monthly salary are 
recommended as under;  
 

Table 7: Human Resource Requirement 

 
Description No  Salary Per Person (Rs.) 

CEO/ Marketing Manager / Owner / Main 
Designer  

                          
1  

                 60,000  

 Production Manager                            
1  

                 50,000  

 Purchase Officer                            
1  

                 40,000  

 Quality Incharge                            
2  

                 25,000  

 Store Supervisor                            
1  

                 30,000  

 Machine Operator                            
8  

                 20,000  

 Skilled Labour                          
10  

                 24,000  

 Unskilled Labour                          
10  

                 18,000  

 Driver                            
1  

                 25,000  

 Marketing Manger                            
1  

                 50,000  

 Accountant                            
1  

                 25,000  

 Office Boy                            
4  

                 18,000  

 Guard                            
2  

                 18,000  

 Total     
48 

 

 

9.8 Utilities and other costs 

An essential cost to be borne by the project is the cost of electricity and gas. The 
electricity expenses are estimated to be around Rs. 185,007 per month. 
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Furthermore, promotional expense being essential for marketing of is estimated as 
5.0% of administrative / Cost of Sales expenses.  

9.9 Revenue Generation 

Based on the capacity utilization of   75 % , sales revenue during the first year of 
operations is estimated as under; 
 

Table 8: Revenue Generation – Year 1 

Description No. of 
Units 

Produced 
(No.) 

Finished 
Goods 

Inventory 
(No.) 

Units 
available 
for Sale 

(No.) 

Sale 
Price / 

unit 
(Rs.) 

Sales 
Revenue 

(Rs.) 

First Year 
Production 

              
1,440,000  

 

             
402,013 

     
1,037,987  

 
154 

        
159,850,000  

 
 
 
 
10 CONTACT DETAILS 

In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service 
Providers relevant to the proposed project be given. 

10.1 Machinery Suppliers 

Name of 
Supplier 

Address Phone E-mail Website 

Sama 
Engineering 

Nazimabad # 2, 
Block-A, Plot No. 
1/32, Opposite 
Firdous Colony KHI-
74600 Pakistan 

0345 2266208 

info@samaen
gineering.com 

https://www.
samaengine
ering.com/ 
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11 USEFUL WEB LINKS 

 
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Authority 
(SMEDA) 

www.smeda.org.pk  

Government of Pakistan www.pakistan.gov.pk  

Ministry of Industries & Production www.moip.gov.pk 

Ministry of Education, Training & Standards in Higher 
Education 

http://moptt.gov.pk 

Government of Punjab www.punjab.gov.pk 

Government of Sindh www.sindh.gov.pk 

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk 

Government of Balochistan www.balochistan.gov.pk 

Government of Gilgit Baltistan www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk 

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir www.ajk.gov.pk  

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP) www.tdap.gov.pk  

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP) www.secp.gov.pk 

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and 
Industry (FPCCI) 

www.fpcci.com.pk 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) www.sbp.org.pk 

Punjab Small Industries Corporation www.psic.gop.pk  
Sindh Small Industries Corporation www.ssic.gos.pk  
Pakistan Horticulture Development and Export Company 
(PHDEC) 

www.phdec.org.pk  

Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC) www.pvtc.gop.pk  
Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority 
(TEVTA) 

www.tevta.org  

Pakistan Readymade Garment Technical Training 
Institute 

www.prgmea.org/prgtti/  

Livestock & Dairy Development Department, Government 
of Punjab. 

www.livestockpunjab.gov.pk  

Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE) www.pie.com.pk 
Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and 
Management Company (FIEDMC)  

www.fiedmc.com.pk  
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12 ANNEXURES 

12.1 Income Statement 
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12.2 Balance Sheet 
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12.3 Cash Flow Statement 
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13 KEY ASSUMPTIONS 
 

Cash Flow Assumptions 
Description Details 

Accounts Receivable Cycle (In days) 30 
Accounts Payable Cycle (In days) 30 
  

 
Revenue Assumptions 
Description Details 

Sale Price Per uNIT Rs. 154 
Growth in Sales Price 10% 
Maximum units Produced in Year 1  1,440,000 

 
Financial Assumptions 
Description Details 

Debt 50 
Equity 50 
Interest Rate On Debt 16 
Debt Tenure 5 
  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority 
HEAD OFFICE 

4th Floor, Building No. 3, Aiwan-e-Iqbal Complex, Egerton Road, Lahore 

Tel: (92 42) 111 111 456, Fax: (92 42) 36304926-7 

www.smeda.org.pk, helpdesk@smeda.org.pk 

 

 
 

REGIONAL OFFICE 

PUNJAB 
REGIONAL OFFICE 

SINDH 
REGIONAL OFFICE  

KPK 
REGIONAL OFFICE 

BALOCHISTAN 
 

3rd Floor, Building No. 3,  

Aiwan-e-Iqbal Complex, 
Egerton Road Lahore, 

Tel: (042) 111-111-456 

Fax: (042) 36304926-7 
helpdesk.punjab@smeda.org.pk 

5TH Floor, Bahria 

Complex II, M.T. Khan Road, 

Karachi. 

Tel: (021) 111-111-456 
Fax: (021) 5610572 

helpdesk-khi@smeda.org.pk 

Ground Floor 

State Life Building 

The Mall, Peshawar. 

Tel: (091) 9213046-47 
Fax: (091) 286908 

helpdesk-pew@smeda.org.pk 

Bungalow No. 15-A 

Chaman Housing Scheme 

Airport Road, Quetta. 

Tel: (081) 831623, 831702 
Fax: (081) 831922 

helpdesk-qta@smeda.org.pk 

 

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
mailto:helpdesk@smeda.org.pk

